
                                  

AGENDA
For a meeting of the

GROWTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
to be held on

WEDNESDAY, 28 NOVEMBER 2018
at

10.00 AM
in

STUDIO 1, GUILDHALL ARTS CENTRE, ST PETER'S HILL, 
GRANTHAM NG31 6PZ

Aidan Rave, Chief Executive    

Chairman
Councillor Robert Reid

Councillor Michael Cook
Councillor Barry Dobson (Vice-Chairman)
Councillor Graham Jeal

Councillor Peter Stephens
Councillor David Taylor
Councillor Paul Wood

Invited Cabinet Members
Councillor Adam Stokes – Cabinet Member for Finance
Councillor Helen Goral – Cabinet Member for Growth and Communications

Support Officer: 
Anita Eckersley

Tel:          01476 406517
E-mail:     a.eckersley@southkesteven.gov.uk

Members of the Committee are invited to attend the above meeting to consider 
the items of business listed below.

1  COMMENTS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 

2  MEMBERSHIP 

The Committee to be notified of any substitute members.

3  APOLOGIES 

4  DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at 
the meeting.

mailto:a.eckersley@southkesteven.gov.uk


5  ACTION NOTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 17 OCTOBER 2018 
(Pages 3 - 10)

(Enclosed)

6  UPDATES FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS 

7  QUARTER 2 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT REPORT 2018/19 (Pages 11 - 29)

(To follow)

8  ANY OTHER BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN, BY REASON OF 
SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES, DECIDES IS URGENT 



MEETING OF THE
GROWTH OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

WEDNESDAY, 17 OCTOBER 2018, 
10.00 AM

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT
Councillor Robert Reid (Chairman)
Councillor Barry Dobson (Vice-Chairman)
Councillor Graham Jeal
Councillor Peter Stephens
Councillor David Taylor
Councillor Paul Wood

CABINET MEMBERS
Councillor Helen Goral, Cabinet Member for Growth and Communications
Councillor Jacky Smith, Cabinet Member for Communities, Health, Wellbeing and 
Skills
Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for  Finance

OTHER MEMBERS PRESENT
Councillor Ashley Baxter

OFFICERS
Chief Executive (Aidan Rave)
Strategic Director (Paul Thomas)
Head of Development Management (Sylvia Bland)
Head of Environment (Anne-Marie Coulthard)
Assistant Director of Housing (Harry Rai)
Head of Town Centres (Paul Allen)
Head of Governance (Ben Bix)
Principal Conservation Officer (Ian Wright)
Civic And Democratic Officer (Anita Eckersley)

32. APOLOGIES
Councillor Mike Cook’s apologies were noted.

33. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS
Councillor David Taylor wished to have noted that he lives in the conservation 
area referred to in the Article 4 Direction – Stamford Report.  

No other interests were disclosed.

3

Agenda Item 5



34. ACTION NOTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 29 AUGUST 2018
The action notes from the previous meeting held on 29 August 2018 were 
noted.

35. ARTICLE 4 DIRECTION, STAMFORD
The Head of Development Management presented report DM14 which 
provided the Committee with an overview of the recent consultation that had 
taken place in respect of Article 4 Direction – Stamford. 

The Committee was reminded that in April 2018 the Cabinet resolved that 
public consultation should be undertaken on the proposed designation of an 
Article 4 Direction that would remove certain permitted development rights on 
unlisted properties in the Stamford Conservation Area and the cancellation of 
the existing Warrenne Keep Direction.  It was noted that Stamford was the first 
town to be declared a Conservation Area in 1967.

The Growth Overview and Scrutiny Committee was being asked to provide 
comment on the outcome of the public consultation exercise and the proposed 
fee for planning applications arising from the Direction.

A public consultation exercise had been undertaken between 20 August 2018 
and 30 September 2018.  The purpose of the consultation had been to seek 
the views of residents and businesses on the proposed Article 4 Direction for 
the Stamford Conservation Area, the cancellation of the existing Article 4 at 
Warrenne Keep and the proposed planning application fee of £206. 

A Notice had been posted to approximately 1400 properties and comments 
from Stamford Town Council and Stamford Civic Society had also been 
sought. A total of six written representations had been received and a total of 
twenty people attended the two drop-in sessions at Stamford Arts Centre. The 
Committee was informed these representations were surmountable.  The 
Article 4 document, once published, would be uploaded on to the website in a 
format that would be easier to read.  

Stamford Town Council had confirmed their support for the Article 4 Direction 
and the Civic Society had commented that they were extremely pleased that 
SKDC was proposing to introduce Article 4 Direction in the Stamford 
Conservation Area and supported the range of permitted developments to be 
removed in the case of unlisted dwelling houses and commercial properties.
 
In response to a query about whether there was correlation between the 
boundaries on the Warrenne Keep Article and the new proposed Article 4 
Direction, it was noted that the Warrenne Keep Direction would be cancelled 
and the boundary of the new Direction would be contiguous with the boundary 
of the Stamford Conservation Area.

Further discussion took place on whether businesses had been included in the 
consultation process and it was noted that everyone in the conservation area 

4



had been informed of the drop-in sessions which had taken place during 
business hours. 

A Member queried whether there was an estimated figure in respect of 
potential compensation payments and was informed that a comparison with 
other local authorities had been undertaken and the risk of potential high 
compensation was very low.

Discussion took place on the proposed fee of £206 which was in line with a 
normal planning fee and it was noted that the fee was to cover the 
administration costs for an application.  It was not a profit making opportunity.  
The Committee felt that was an appropriate figure.

Members queried whether it was feasible for other areas in the District, such as 
areas in Grantham, to have a similar order and the Chairman suggested that 
the Stamford Article 4 Direction could potentially be seen as a Pilot Scheme for 
other areas.  Further consideration could be given to other areas in due 
course. 

RECOMMENDATIONS:

a) Following careful consideration of the report and subsequent 
considerations arising from the outcome of the public consultation 
exercise and clarification of the Committee’s queries, the Growth 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee recommends to Cabinet that the 
Article 4 Direction for Stamford should be adopted and the existing 
Warrenne Keep Direction be cancelled.  Both to be effective from 1 
December 2018;

b) The Committee also agreed and recommend that a fee of £206 be 
introduced for each planning application arising from the Direction.

36. UPDATES FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS
Disabled Facilities Grants: The Head of Environmental provided the 
Committee with an update on Disabled Facilities Grants (DFG). She explained 
that the DFG was a Government Grant dispersed through Lincolnshire County 
Council. The Government had recently changed the mechanism resulting in a 
larger amount of money being available.  

During 2016/17 funding had been £375,000 but this had increased to 
£796,000 for 2017/18 and had to be used for non-council stock. Funding from 
the Housing Revenue Account was used for Council housing stock. During 
2017/18 there had been an under-spend which was rolled over to 2018/19. An 
under-spend for 2018/19 was forecast even though there had been a slight 
increase in grant approvals to date.  

5



The Cabinet Member for Communities, Health, Wellbeing and Skills and the 
Head of Environmental were working with the NHS and CCG to look at ways 
of supporting patients waiting to leave hospital but were not well enough to 
return to their home setting. A pilot scheme of “step-down” accommodation 
was proposed which would allow patients to leave hospital and free up 
hospital beds.  

The Disabled Facilities Grant was “means” tested with a requirement to 
secure a local land charge to recover any elements used where applicable.  
The process had been reviewed and trimmed down and now enabled a wider 
section of people to access the grants but more work on trimming down the 
process was required.

Referrals were made through Occupational Therapists at Lincolnshire County 
Council and although they had stated there was no backlog, there was a 
waiting list of people to be assessed, although the assessment may not 
always result in a referral for a DFG.

Members queried the feasibility of using some of the funding to employ an 
Occupational Therapist for the District, but it was noted that any referrals 
made by a District Occupational Therapist would still need to go through the 
Lincolnshire Occupational Therapists for approval; whether the grant process 
was advertised sufficiently; the size of the grants allocated; the costs 
associated with administering these grants; the difficulties of employing 
Occupational Therapists nationally; what engagement had been undertaken 
with the Citizens Advice Bureau (CAB) and GPs, and managing people’s 
expectations in respect of advertising grants.

Action Point: That further work is undertaken with the CAB and GPs and that 
further consideration is given to appropriate advertising through the Council’s 
media channels.

Smoke Alarms, Rewiring and Accessibility: The Assistant Director for 
Housing referred to the Q4 Financial report that had indicated a significant 
underspend of £200k due to accessibility issues.  He noted that as the 
landlord, accessibility should not be an issue especially when addressing 
safety issues. 

The Committee was informed that access to around 700 properties was 
required and he could now report that 692 of these properties had been fitted 
with smoke alarms.  In addition, operatives had been asked to check the 
smoke alarms when visiting properties. Where batteries were fitted, lithium 
batteries were being fitted as they lasted longer. Where possible smoke 
alarms were being hard wired in order to ensure that they were continually in 
use. The aim was to eventually hard wire all properties.

6



In response to a Member’s query about whether new properties were being 
hard wired, it was noted there was a list of 16 criteria /concepts that had to be 
taken into consideration when building new Council properties and hard wiring 
was one of those considerations.  

Homelessness: The Assistant Director for Housing referred to the slight 
underspend in the Financial Report and noted that the Council received 
around £450,000 over a period of three years for homelessness prevention.  
He explained that that there had been a 40% increase in demand over the 
period.  The monies were used to assist homeless people through a variety of 
ways such as, IT interface and rent deposit. The numbers were reducing 
which indicated that intervention at an earlier stage was successful and 
preventing homelessness although there had been a slight increase in the use 
of temporary accommodation. 

A Member queried whether referrals were made to Social Services and it was 
noted that the Council’s Case workers were allocated to applicants and they 
worked closely with especially vulnerable people.

In response to a query about the use of IT for a homeless person, it was noted 
that people were expected to be proactive in undertaking searches for 
accommodation and to do this they required access to IT services.  Work had 
to be taken around assessing the reasons for homelessness and providing 
accommodation in the short term for people.  Statistically, there had been an 
improvement.  Out of the 838 applications, 122 people had been declared 
homeless. It was also noted that Grantham was convenient as a drop off point 
for people travelling from other areas.

A Member queried whether the Committee could receive a breakdown of the 
figures especially around how it was split across the District.

Action Point:

The Assistant Director for Housing to circulate statistical information regarding 
the numbers of homeless people split across the District.

Towns and Markets: The Chairman commented that Altrincham Council was 
in the process of holding workshops on the viability of town centres and how 
they were being used.  He noted that people were now shopping in a variety 
of ways, and commented on the change in use of town centres with different 
types of eating establishments being opened and thriving. 

The Head of Town Centres informed the Committee that InvestSK was looking 
at all areas in respect of town centres including car parks, coach parties, 
markets and shop usage, improved signage and the customer experience.  It 
was noted that footfall at the Saturday Market in Grantham had increased, and 
there was better interaction between retail shop owners and the market.  A lot 
of work was also being undertaken in respect of creating a calendar of events 

7



that included all of the towns in the District. It was suggested that this could be 
brought to a future meeting.

Discussion took place on themed markets, liaison with market stall holders in 
all towns and some stall holders taking part in markets in other towns in the 
District; markets that reflected the cultural diversity of each town and 
discussions with land owners. 

The Vice Chairman noted that he was going to Chair a County Council Sub 
Committee that would be looking at the vitality and versatility of the County’s 
town centres and invited the Chairman and the Head of Town Centres to 
attend a meeting to appraise them of the work being undertaken in the District.

Further discussion took place on issues and successes regarding the markets 
in all the towns within the District and the Chairman commented that it might 
be appropriate for a sub-committee to be created that could oversee the work 
on town centres.

Recommendation:

That the Growth Overview and Scrutiny Committee formerly recommend to 
Cabinet that consideration is given to forming a Sub-Committee to oversee 
the work on town centres in the District.

Wherry’s Lane – Retail Units: The Strategic Director for Growth confirmed 
that the update was regarding the retail units on Wherry’s Lane and reported 
that out of the seven units in Phase 1, four were now occupied, two leases 
were in the process of being completed and that interest had been shown in 
respect of the remaining unit.

Headcount: It was confirmed that this would be an item on the agenda of a 
future meeting of the Committee.

In response to a Member’s query about when the Performance Monitoring 
Report along with the Q2 Finance report and an update on DeliverSK would 
be provided, it was noted that both the Performance Monitoring Report and 
Q2 Finance report would be on the agenda for the next meeting.  It was 
though, too soon to receive an update on DeliverSK.
The Committee noted the updates.

37. COMMUNICATIONS STRATEGY
The Cabinet Member for Growth and Communications attended the meeting 
to provide the Committee with a presentation on the work undertaken by the 
Communications Team. The presentation would cover the objectives and 
principles, the core activities, examples of recent projects, future priorities, and 
an overview of the LGA Peer Health Check. 

8



The objective and mission statement for the Communications Team was:

“Developing consistent, high quality, innovative and cost effective internal and 
external communications, to increase awareness of South Kesteven District 
Council services and achievements and to improve the reputation of the 
Council.”
 
The principles were to strengthen and promote the Council; ensure 
consistency and a co-ordinated approach that supported the Council’s 
Corporate Strategy and promoted the Council as an effective, efficient and 
listening organisation that focused on the public and their needs; ensure that 
people were better informed of the Council’s objectives and achievements; to 
ensure all employees of the Council felt valued and supported in their role as 
ambassadors for the organisation. Other principles were to respond 
proactively and positively to enquiries, work in a co-ordinated approach with 
partners and organisations for the benefit of residents; promote and enhance 
the work with parish councils, and the voluntary and community sector to 
develop closer relationships and to build capacity for greater community 
involvement.

Some of the core activities included more than just handling press inquiries. 
The team was responsible for weekly media round-ups, working with Cabinet 
Members in respect of building relationships, promoting their areas of 
responsibility and providing key messages both internally and externally.  
Organising the launch of events, writing and designing material for festivals, 
advertising events and consultations through social media, monitoring and 
responding to posts on social media and filming and photographing events, 
collating and publishing the weekly staff/Member newsletter, Evolve. Writing 
copy for press releases, SK Newsletters and magazines including SKtoday.  
The circulation for SKtoday had been increased following a recent review of 
distribution requirements. The team also covered crisis management, Council 
meetings, wellbeing at work and provided a full graphics service.

The Communications Team were the main gatekeepers for branding and 
messaging but it was important to note that every elected Member and every 
member of staff was also an ambassador of the Council. 

Reference was made to the people and organisations Communications 
engaged with and how quickly social media formats changed. The Team 
comprised of a Communications Team Leader, 2 Communication Officers, 1 
Consultation and Engagement Officer, a Graphics Officer and a Web 
monitoring and Social Media Officer. A Head of Communications was to be 
recruited

The Committee was shown a list of projects the team had been involved with 
such as, the member grant scheme; evolve, gravity fields, business summit, 
trade waste, residents survey, Deepings market and Article 4 consultation 

9



In addition the LGA had undertaken a peer health check of the team and the 
Committee was informed of some of the recommendations:

Clarity in respect of reporting lines; a review of job descriptions; a restructure, 
roles to be changed to enable better resilience within the team; a review of 
specialist skills; a requirement for regular resident surveys and a forward plan 
that focussed less on outputs and press releases. The recommendations had 
been implemented and had resulted in greater focus and productivity. A 
review would be undertaken on an annual basis in order to monitor the 
progress being made as there was still work to be done.

In response to Member’s queries, it was noted that 1:1s were conducted on a 
weekly basis, a recent resident survey had indicated that 53% of residents 
were either satisfied or very satisfied with Council services and this would be 
used as a bench mark for future resident surveys. An event planner had been 
created but it was dependent on Members and staff informing 
Communications of up and coming events.  It would be updated on a regular 
basis.

With regards to the cost of the Communications Team over the last three 
years, the Cabinet Member for Finance confirmed that this information could 
be found on page 61 in the Budget Book which was available on the Council’s 
Website.

Although the Communications Team did not just deal with press releases, 
since the implementation of the LGA recommendations, there had been 120+ 
press releases over the last 9 months which was an increase on the previous 
period. In addition there were now 500+ new followers on twitter for the year to 
date. 

The Chairman thanked the Cabinet Member for Growth and Communications 
for the presentation and update on the Communications Team.

Action point:
 
That the Growth Overview and Scrutiny Committee look forward to receiving 
an annual update.

38. CLOSE OF MEETING
The meeting closed at 12:50pm.

10



GROWTH OVERVIEW
and

 SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Report of: Councillor Adam Stokes
Cabinet Member for Finance

Report to:

Date:

Subject:

Growth Overview & Scrutiny Committee

28 November 2018

Quarter 2 Financial Monitoring Report 2018/19 
(CFM478)

Decision
Proposal:

None

Relevant 
Cabinet 
Member:

Cllr Adam Stokes- Cabinet Member for Finance

Report author:

Reviewed by:

Signed off by:

Approved for 
publication

Richard Wyles, Assistant Director - Resources
Tel: 01476 406210
Email: r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk
Date: 19 November 2018 

Alison Hall-Wright – Head of Financial Services
01476 406208 - alison.hall-wright@southkesteven.gov.uk
Date: 19 November 2018

Debbie Muddimer, Strategic Director - Resources
Tel: 01476 406301
Email: debbie.muddimer@southkesteven.gov.uk
Date: 19 November 2018 

Cllr Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance
Date: 19 November 2018

SUMMARY 

This report sets out the forecast outturn position for 2018/19 as at the end of Quarter 2 
(30 September 2018).  The report covers the following areas:

 General Fund Revenue Budget (Section 2)
 Housing Revenue Account Budget (Section 3)
 Capital Programmes – General Fund and HRA (Section 4)
 An update on the national financial context, including announcements in the 

Budget Statement and the latest position with the Business Rates Pilot 
(Section 5).

11

Agenda Item 7

mailto:r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:alison.hall-wright@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:debbie.muddimer@southkesteven.gov.uk


RECOMMENDATION

Growth Overview & Scrutiny committee are asked to
 

1. Review the comments and figures contained in this report and identify any 
variances that require further action.

2. Note that Officers continue to identify actions and take measures to effectively
manage the overall budget and reduce the impact of any adverse projected 
pressures that may result in overspends.

3. Note the changes being proposed by the Government in respect of business rates 
and other Budget announcements

4. Note the current performance of the business rates pilot and recommend to 
Cabinet the allocation of the projected business rate financial growth

1. BACKGROUND TO REPORT

1.1 The Council, having set a balanced budget at the start of the financial year, 
needs to ensure the delivery of this budget is achieved. Consequently, there is 
a requirement to regularly monitor progress so corrective action can be taken 
when required. 

2. GENERAL FUND REVENUE BUDGET

2.1 The 2018/19 original general revenue budget approved by Council on 1 March 
2018 was set at £17.161m, this budget has been amended during the year to 
allow for budget adjustments.  The budget as at 30 September 2018 is 
£18.705m as a result of the following amendments being approved during the 
year:

Revenue Budget amendment £’000
2017/18 Budget Carry forward and set asides 694
Environment SK 40
Deliver SK 100
One off costs arising from the Senior Management Restructure* 710

*This is the actual cost incurred following the implementation of the new senior management 
arrangements.  The full year saving of the new structure will be £300k for the General Fund 
and the payback period is 2 years and 4 months. 

12



2.2 The following table summarises the general fund budget position by Directorate 
as at 30 September 2018.  A revenue monitoring statement is attached at 
Appendix A with detailed variance analysis as at 30 September 2018 attached 
at Appendix B. 

Quarter 2
2018/19

 

Original 
Budget 

£000

Adjusted 
Budget 

£000

Forecast
Outturn                           

£000

Forecast 
Variance 

£000
Priority Focus    
Commercial 6,051 6,172 6,244 72
Growth 6,773 6,689 7,211 522
Resources 4,337 5,844 5,994 150
Net Cost of Service 17,161 18,705 19,449 744
    
Interest and investment Income (250) (250) (287) (37)
Interest Payable 52 52 52 0
Minimum Revenue Provision 247 247 154 (93)
Depreciation (3,400) (3,400) (3,400) 0
Local Council Tax Support Scheme Grant 22 22 22 0
Reserves & Grants (1,960) (3,504) (3,437) 67
Total Net Cost of Service 11,872 11,872 12,553 681
    
Business Rates (4,400) (4,400) (4,400) 0
Business Rates Growth and S31 grants (250) (250) (2,200) (1,950)
Transfer from Business Rates volatility 
reserve (397) (397) (397) 0
Collection Fund (Surplus)/Deficit 321 321 321 0
Council Tax (7,146) (7,146) (7,146) 0
Total Funding (11,872) (11,872) (13,822) (1,950)
(Surplus)/Deficit 0 0 (1,269) (1,269)*
     

*see the table on page 9 for the proposed allocation of the business rate growth

2.3 The forecast position on the general fund revenue budget for 31 March 2019 is 
a surplus of £1.269m.  This is largely due to the success of the Business Rates 
Pilot that the Council is part of for 2018/19 which is forecasting an additional 
gain of £1.950m, as at Q2.  The pilot is for this financial year only therefore this 
level of income will not continue beyond 31 March 2019 but it does give the 
Council the opportunity to make additional investment in this financial year. 
Further consideration and proposals is given to this at Section 5 of this report.

2.4 At net cost of service level, there is currently a forecast overspend of £681k.  A 
more detailed breakdown and analysis of this variance is shown at Appendix A.    
As can be seen from the table at appendix A, a large proportion of the variances 
(£505k which is 74% of total variance) are one off and are not expected to 
continue into future financial years.  

13



2.4 The issues that have been identified as recurring, i.e. expected to continue into 
2019/20 onwards amount to £176k (26%).  These issues are being considered 
as part of the work that is underway to prepare the draft budget for 2019/20.

2.5 Forecasting work will now continue on a monthly basis in order to accurately 
track the spend for the remainder of the financial year.  This monthly review will 
also identify and put in place remedial actions in order to ensure the forecast 
does not increase.  With respect to the funding of the projected overspend, 
proposals are provided at paragraph 5.9 that require consideration by 
members.  

    
A summary of the position for each Directorate is shown below:

Commercial
 Fuel prices have increased during 2018/19 which has resulted in an 

estimated overspend of £80k which is being funded from the Waste and 
Recycling initiatives reserve.  

 There is a forecast overspend of £45k on the vehicle repairs budget due to 
the number of external repairs that have been undertaken.  The workshop 
does not have the equipment or expertise to be able to complete the 
specialist works that are required.

 Garden Waste income has exceeded the budget by £40k following 28,029 
households renewing their subscription and 891 new households signing 
up to the service.  

Growth
 The council allocated £3.9m of Capital budget for property investment 

acquisition opportunities which have not yet been identified.  This has 
resulted in a variance of £93k in the investment strategy income budget.

 The markets income budget has a shortfall of £42k due to reduced levels 
of income from Grantham market and the proposed increase in the number 
of market stalls in Stamford has not yet been implemented following 
consultation.

 There has been a reduction in the level of rental income received from third 
parties for the rental of council office accommodation which has resulted in 
a loss of income of £43k.  This office space is currently being occupied by 
council officers whilst the St Peter’s Hill Public Realm and Office 
remodelling work is completed.

 Car park income has a forecast variance of £250k following a reduction in 
in the forecast compared with the budgets. There has been a modest 
increase in income from the additional spaces created in Stamford 
Cattlemarket.

 The 2018/19 budget included £100k income relating to the transfer of non-
dwelling HRA assets to the General Fund.  The identified sites are in the 
process of being assessed for their suitability for housing development 
resulting in a forecast variance of £75k.

14



 There has been a significant increase in the demand for emergency 
accommodation which has resulted in a forecast overspend of £43k.  Work 
is currently being undertaken to mitigate future costs.

Resources
 There is a forecast underspend of £219k of one-off from staffing budgets 

due to a number of vacant posts in Revenues and Benefits, ICT, 
Transformation, Legal and Customer Services.

 The HRA is recharged annually for the use of general fund support services.  
The basis for this recharge calculation has been reviewed which has 
resulted in £263k additional income to the general fund from the HRA for 
services provided.

3. HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

3.1 The original budget for 2018/19 was set at a surplus for the year of £6.668m. 
The budgeted surplus is transferred to the reserves in order to provide 
additional internal funding for the HRA capital programme.

The budget is adjusted in year to allow for budget virements, creation of set-
asides and centralisation of key budget headings. The forecast surplus has 
reduced to £6.095m which has resulted in a forecast overspend of £410k.  The 
detailed HRA monitoring statement is attached at Appendix C.  

Quarter 2
2018/19

 
Budget 

£000

Adjusted 
Budget 

£000

Forecast 
Outturn 

£000

Forecast 
Variance 

£000
Expenditure 16,183 16,346 16,626 280
Income (25,439) (25,439) (25,309) 130
Net Cost of Service (9,256) (9,093) (8,683) 410
Interest Payable and Similar Charges 2,816 2,816 2,816 0
Interest and Investment Income (228) (228) (228) 0
DEFICIT (SURPLUS) FOR THE YEAR 
ON THE HRA (6,668) (6,505) (6,095) 410
     

3.2 As documented at Appendix D the forecast deficit as at 30 September 2018 is 
impacted by a number of both positive and negative variances.  The most 
significant variances which have impacted on the reduced surplus position are 
as follows:

 The income expected from housing rents is £150k below budget due to 
estimated write-offs of £120k and the void rate being higher than 
expected.  This is partly offset by forecast additional income of £20k from 
services and facilities charges

15



 There is a forecast overspend of £188k of the repairs and maintenance 
budget due to an increase in material costs and reactive works and the 
work force efficiency not being achieved due to vacancies being lower 
than anticipated.

 The workforce efficiency of £94k has also not been achieved on the 
Supervision and Management budget due to vacant posts being lower 
than anticipated. 

4. CAPITAL PROGRAMME

4.1 The original capital budget for 2018/19 was set at £14.839m.  The budget is 
adjusted during the year as new projects are identified.  The updated position 
of £17.478m is shown in the ‘Adjusted Budget’ column in the table below.  A 
summary of the budget changes that have been approved during the year are 
as follows:

Date Capital Budget Adjustment £000
June 2018 Budget carry forwards 528
July 2018 Grounds Maintenance Vehicles 450
July 2018 St Peter’s Hill Public Realm 1,661

4.2 The following table summarises the general fund capital budget position as 
at 30 September 2018.  The capital budget has a forecast underspend of 
£2.133m which has reduced the in-year transfer from reserves by £1.5m 
and grant funding by £0.6m.  It is anticipated that there will be requests to 
carry forward the underspent budgets and associated funding to 2019/20.  
A detailed general fund capital monitoring statement is attached at 
Appendix E which provides details of the progress of the schemes.  

GENERAL FUND CAPITAL PROGRAMME MONITORING - SEPTEMBER 2018
2018/19

 

Original 
Budget 
£000

Adjusted 
Budget 
£000

Forecast 
Outturn 
£000

Forecast 
Variance 
£000

EXPENDITURE SUMMARY     
Growth 13,879 15,726 13,628 (2,098)
Commercial 835 1,585 1,585 0
Resources 125 167 132 (35)
 14,839 17,478 15,345 (2,133)
Financing Analysis     
Prudential Borrowing (2,000) (2,000) (2,000) 0
Use of Reserves (10,917) (13,513) (11,980) 1,533
Capital Receipts (788) (788) (788) 0
Capital Grants and Contributions (1,134) (1,177) (577) 600
 (14,839) (17,478) (15,345) 2,133
NET EXPENDITURE 0 0 0 0

16



4.3 As documented in Appendix E there are a number of both positive and 
negative variances which form the £2.133m underspend.  The most significant 
variances are as follows:  

 There is a £1.4m underspend on the Gravitas Housing Scheme project.  
There was a delay in the commencement of this project which is a 12-
month project therefore it will be necessary to carry forward the funding 
into 2019/20. 

 The Council has received £797k of disabled facilities grant funding which 
is currently forecast to be underspent by £477k.  Mandatory DFGs require 
a referral from Lincolnshire County Council Occupational Therapy Team.  
To date 66 applications have been received and 49 have been 
successfully upheld after meeting the criteria.  Growth OSC considered 
this matter at their meeting on 17 October 2018 and the following action 
point was agreed:  Action Point: That further work is undertaken with the 
CAB and GPs and that further consideration is given to appropriate 
advertising through the Council’s media channels.

4.4 The following table summarises the HRA capital budget position as at 30 
September 2018.  The capital budget was set at £10.004m and currently has a 
forecast underspend of £2.224m which has reduced the in-year transfer from 
reserves.  The underspend relates to the property development budget spend 
of which is dependent upon sites being identified for investment.  It is 
anticipated that there will be a request to carry forward the underspent budget 
and associated funding to 2019/20.  A detailed HRA capital monitoring 
statement is attached at Appendix F which provides details of the progress of 
the schemes.  

HRA CAPITAL PROGRAMME MONITORING - SEPTEMBER 2018
2018/19

 

Original 
Budget 
£000

Adjusted 
Budget 
£000

Forecast 
Outturn 
£000

Forecast 
Variance 
£000

HRA Investment Programme     
     
Stock Improvements & New Build Programme 9,680 9,680 7,456 (2,224)
Purchase of Vehicles 324 324 324 0
 10,004 10,004 7,780 (2,224)
Financing Analysis     
Major Repairs Reserve (4,214) (4,214) (4,215) (1)
Property Development Reserve (5,000) (5,000) (2,775) 2,225
HRA Capital Receipts (790) (790) (790) 0
 (10,004) (10,004) (7,780) 2,224
NET EXPENDITURE 0 0 0 0

17



5. FINANCIAL UPDATE

Budget 2018

5.1 The Chancellor of the Exchequer presented his Budget 2018 to the House of 
Commons on 29 October 2018. Within the budget there were a number of new 
initiatives that will have an impact on the Council’s financial position in the short 
to medium term.  

5.2 The most significant to the Council is the confirmation that the Housing 
Revenue account borrowing cap was abolished from 29 October 2018 in 
England. The borrowing cap controlled local authority borrowing for house 
building and limited the borrowing that the Council could undertake for the HRA 
to £135m in total, of which we have £106m of outstanding debt leaving £29m 
headroom.    The removal of the cap means that future borrowing decisions 
need to be assessed within the prudential framework mindful of ongoing 
affordability. 

5.3 There were a number of changes to business rates announced, many of which 
will come into effect from April 2019. The changes are summarised in the table 
below.  The Council will be fully compensated for any loss of income from these 
initiatives through a Section 31 Grant.

Announcement Impact on SKDC
Providing upfront support to the 
business rates system through 
reducing bills by one-third for retail 
properties with a rateable value 
below £51,000, benefiting up to 90% 
of retail properties, for 2 years from 
April 2019, subject to state aid limits.

An initial assessment of the positive 
impact this will have on the 
businesses within the district has 
suggested that approximately 500 
businesses (88% all eligible retail 
units) will see a reduction in their 
rating liability from April 2019.

The introduction of 100% business 
rates relief for all public lavatories 
from 2020/21 with the aim of helping 
keep these amenities open

The Council operates 4 public 
lavatories in the district and this 
proposal will result in a full year 
reduction of £11K in the rating bill of 
the Council.

Continuing with the £1,500 business 
rates discount for office space 
occupied by local newspapers in 
2019/20. 

This Council awarded relief totalling 
£3k in 2018/19 and will continue to 
provide this rating reduction in 
accordance with the budget 
announcement.

5.4 The Chancellor also announced that he was providing councils with an 
additional £55m in 2018/19 for the Disabled Facilities Grant to provide home 
aids and adaptations for disabled children and adults on low incomes.

18



5.5 Looking further ahead, the provisional settlement is expected on 6 December 
which will include financial allocations for Councils across England and Wales 
and should include the details of the 19/20 100% business rates pilot 
authorities, New homes bonus allocations, baseline funding and details of 
revenue support grants (including whether the Council will be impacted by 
negative revenue support grant as currently predicted).

2018/19 100% Business Rates Pilot for Lincolnshire

5.6 Members will be aware that the Council is currently part of the Lincolnshire 
(including North East Lincolnshire) pilot area.  During the year careful 
monitoring and forecasting of the pilot has been undertaken by specialist 
financial advisors working alongside technical officers from each participating 
authority.

5.7 The current projection of performance for each authority as at quarter 2 is 
shown as:

Lincolnshire Pool Projected Business Rate 
Income above baseline

£’000
Lincolnshire Pilot Gain 34,574
South Kesteven 2,200
Total 36,774

5.8 It can be seen that based on current projections the additional growth for South 
Kesteven for 2018/19 is currently forecast to be a net increase of £1.95m over 
budgeted levels.  It is important to note that this is a forecast as at 30 September 
and could change during the rest of the year if there are significant changes, 
for example, High Street retail closures and/or business closures.

5.9 Should the Council receive a one-off financial gain of £1.95m as currently 
projected, it is for Council to decide how the additional funding should be 
utilised. Given the current forecast position on the general fund revenue budget 
set out in Section 1 of this report, it is recommended that the first call on the 
business rate gain is to balance the budget. Thereafter the table below 
summarises the potential allocation that could be made to fund specific 
priorities.

Detail £’000
Business Rates gain 1,950
Balancing the 2018/19 revenue budget (681)
Funding for Growth Projects in 2018/19, to be considered by 
Cabinet in December (see 5.11 below)

(300)

Funding of one off urgent items arising in 2018/19 to be 
considered by Cabinet in December (see 5.12 below)

(150)

Formation of a Property maintenance reserve (119)
Replenishment of the IT Reserve (200)
Balance remaining to be set aside to finance future 
Growth/Regeneration projects 

(500)

19



5.10 In the submission for the Business Rates Pilot, priorities for use of any 
additional income were set out and included the following:

i. The development of a targeted approach to inward investment, focussing 
on growing and deficient sectors in the SK economy; 

ii. Improving the general environment and critical infrastructure such as 
broadband connectivity across the district; 

iii. Identifying and addressing skills needs for all indigenous and new 
businesses;

iv. Exploring opportunities to enhance the tourism economy, particularly 
where it relates to culture and heritage;

5.11 Officers are working with Cabinet to develop a detailed set of proposals that will 
contribute to the growth of the district, these are under four key themes of 
Leisure, Town Centres, Business & Skills and Property Development. 

5.12 Throughout the course of the year, a number of issues have been identified that 
require urgent attention but are currently unfunded, for example some urgent 
repairs are required to closed Churchyards.  The additional business rates 
income provides the opportunity to address some of these types of issues in 
year.  Cabinet will be asked to consider these proposals at their meeting in 
December, for onward recommendation to Council in January. 

6. OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

6.1 N/A

7. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 There are no resource implications arising from this report.

8. RISK AND MITIGATION 

8.1 Risk has been considered as part of this report and any specific high risks are 
included in the table below:

Category Risk Action / Controls
None identified

9. ISSUES ARISING FROM IMPACT ANALYSIS (EQUALITY, 
SAFEGUARDING etc.)

9.1 No impact analysis is required.

10. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

10.1 There are no crime and disorder implications arising as a result of this report.

20



11. COMMENTS OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

11.1 These are included in the report

12. COMMENTS OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

12.1 As part of good governance it is important members are kept updated in respect 
of the financial position of the Council expenditure during the course of the year.

13. COMMENTS OF OTHER RELEVANT SERVICES 

13.1 None

14. APPENDICES

Appendix A – General Fund Revenue Variance Analysis (over £15k)
Appendix B – 2018/19 Savings – Quarter 2
Appendix C – HRA Forecast Position 2018/19 – Quarter 2
Appendix D – HRA Revenue Variance Analysis (over £15k)
Appendix E – General Fund Capital Programme Variance Analysis
Appendix F – HRA Capital Programme Variance Analysis

15. BACKGROUND PAPERS

Determination of Budget 2018/19 and indicative budgets to
2020/21 – General Fund, Housing Revenue Account and
associated Capital Programmes report
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s19700/CFM453Budget%
20COUNCIL%20V2.pdf

Outturn Position 2017/18 report
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s20657/CFM459%20outtu
rn%20v6%20new%20template.pdf

Financial Management Report for 2018/19 - April-
June (Quarter 1) Monitoring Information report
http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/b6222/Q1%20Financial%20outturn%20
201819%2025th-Jul-
2018%2010.00%20Growth%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Committee.
pdf?T=9

21

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s19700/CFM453Budget%20COUNCIL%20V2.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s19700/CFM453Budget%20COUNCIL%20V2.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s20657/CFM459%20outturn%20v6%20new%20template.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s20657/CFM459%20outturn%20v6%20new%20template.pdf


Appendix A

Revenue Forecast Position 2018/19 – Quarter 2

Original 
Budget 

£000

Adjusted 
Budget 

£000
Forecast                           

£000

Forecast 
Variance 

£000
Priority Focus    
Commercial 6,051 6,172 6,244 72
Growth 6,773 6,689 7,211 522
Resources 4,337 5,844 5,994 150
Net Cost of Service 17,161 18,705 19,449 744
    
Interest and investment Income (250) (250) (287) (37)
Interest Payable 52 52 52 0
Minimum Revenue Provision 247 247 154 (93)
Depreciation (3,400) (3,400) (3,400) 0
Local Council Tax Support Scheme Grant 22 22 22 0

13,832 15,376 15,990 614
Income from Reserves & Grants   
Events & Festivals (160) (160) (140) 20
Apprenticeships (65) (65) (36) 29
Economic Development & Growth (120) (120) (120) 0
Community Fund (150) (150) (108) 42
Ward Member Fund (56) (56) (56) 0
Big Clean (200) (200) (185) 15
Invest to Save (332) (332) (205) 127
Pension Reserve (797) (797) (827) (30)
Building Control Trading Account 22 22 8 (14)
Grantham SEA 50 50 50 0
Langtoft SEA (1) (1) (1) 0
Local Priorities Reserve  0 (664) (664) 0
Service Improvement Reserve  0 (710) (710) 0
Waste & Recycling Initiatives 0 0 (80) (80)
Grants (151) (321) (363) (42)
 (1,960) (3,504) (3,437) 67
Total Net Cost of Service 11,872 11,872 12,553 681

   
Business Rates (4,400) (4,400) (4,400) 0
Business Rates Pilot Gain (250) (250) (2,200) (1,950)
Transfer from NNDR volatility reserve (397) (397) (397) 0
Collection Fund (Surplus)/Deficit 321 321 321 0
Council Tax (7,146) (7,146) (7,146) 0
Total Funding (11,872) (11,872) (13,822) (1,950)
Total Variance (to)/from reserves 0 0 (1,269) (1,269)*

*see the table on page 9 for details of the proposed allocation of this growth

22



Appendix B
General Fund Revenue Variance Analysis (over £15k)

Variances by Directorate

Forecast 
Variance 
£000

Recurring
£000

One-
off
£000

Commercial  
Fuel - Unpredicted increases in fuel prices has resulted in a 
forecast overspend which will be funded by a reserve as shown in 
Appendix A

80 80  

Vehicle Repairs - An increase in the number of external repairs 
have been undertaken due to the nature of the works.   

45 45  

Flood Prevention - Income received from a third party to undertake 
additional projects during 2018/19 is no longer required since the 
programme of works has been finalised and funded by Riparian 
land owners.

(47) (47)

Environmental Services- A change in the use of contractors has 
resulted in a forecast under spend

(30) (30)  

Big Clean - The second permanent Big Clean crew were not 
recruited until June which has resulted in an underspend 

(40) (40)

Green Waste Collection –Additional income of has been received, 
with 28,029 households renewing their subscription for 2018/19 
and 891 new households joining the service throughout the year. 

(40) (40)  

Growth  
Property Investment Strategy – New opportunities are being 
actively pursued, however no further investment purchases have 
been made during the year.

93 93  

St Peter's Hill Development - The updated timeline of this scheme 
has resulted in the rental income not being achieved.

30 30  

Transfer of non-dwelling HRA assets to the General Fund - there 
has been a deferral of this proposal whilst the identified sites are 
being assessed for their suitability for housing development.

75 75

Markets - Grantham is continuing to have reduced levels of income 
but is being promoted with additional events to support both traders 
and the local business community. This is a priority for the Council 
and as such has resulted in a forecast net over spend. Stamford - 
The proposed increase in market stalls available for traders has 
not yet commenced following consultation

42 42  

Council Offices - Loss in rental income following the tenants not 
renewing their lease arrangements. 43 43

Council Offices - In year changes to lease arrangement at The 
Maltings has resulted in a forecast underspend 

(33) (33)  

Industrial Estates - Fully occupied units has resulted in additional 
income 

(19) (19)  

Staffing Costs - Additional surveyor costs incurred though agency 
during period of recruitment

24 24

23



Variances by Directorate

Forecast 
Variance 
£000

Recurring
£000

One-
off
£000

Car Parks - A change in enforcement hours has resulted in a 
reduction in forecast expenditure

(27) (27)

Car Parks- Reduction in the number of ticket sales in respect of 
Grantham car parks and the budgeted increase in car parking 
income is currently not being achieved.  There has been a review 
of car parks that has resulted in some additional capacity being 
created.

250 250  

Footpath Lighting - Forecast reductions made for street lamp 
replacements following health and safety investment in previous 
years

(15) (15)  

Cemetery - Additional burial income forecast and transitional 
business rate relief 

(17) (17)

Leisure Centres - Additional in year equipment costs at Deepings 
and Mere's has resulted in a forecast over spend 21 21  

Homelessness - There has been a significant rise in demand for 
emergency accommodation resulting in a forecast over spend. 
Further review work is currently being undertaken to mitigate future 
costs.

43 43  

Resources  
Savings & Efficiencies within the Corporate priority such as 
Procurement savings, utilities, and establishment cost savings 
are currently showing a forecast variance. Work is continuing 
under these headings to identify the actual savings that are 
anticipated to be made. 

412 412

Staffing budgets - In year forecast savings of vacant posts in 
Benefits, Revenues, Customer Services, ICT, Transformation, 
Legal

(219) (219)

Staffing Costs - Additional agency costs in year 115 115
HRA recharges - Increase in recharge base following realignment 
of costs (263) (263)  

Audit - Changes to planned audit days has resulted in a forecast 
under spend. Budgets have also been reduced in future years (28) (28)  

TOTAL VARIANCES 495 176 319
  
Sum of Minor Variances (variances < £15K, this is less than 
1% of net spend) 186 186

  
TOTAL VARIANCE 681 176 505

24



Appendix C

HRA Forecast Position 2018/19 – Quarter 2

2018/19

Budget 
£000

Adjusted 
Budget 

£000

Forecast 
Outturn 

£000

Forecast 
Variance 

£000
    
INCOME    
Dwelling Rents (24,439) (24,439) (24,289) 150
Non Dwelling Rents (311) (311) (311) 0
Charges for Services and Facilities (622) (622) (642) (20)
Other Income (67) (67) (67) 0
TOTAL INCOME (25,439) (25,439) (25,309) 130
    
EXPENDITURE    
Repairs and Maintenance 7,907 7,867 8,055 188
Supervision and Management – General 2,783 2,791 2,875 84
Supervision and Management – Special 1,097 1,203 1,211 8
HRA share of Corporate and Democratic Costs 460 460 460 0
Depreciation and Impairment of Fixed Assets 3,431 3,431 3,431 0
Debt Management Expenses 35 35 35 0
Provision for bad debts 245 245 245 0
Other Expenditure (Pension Deficit) 225 225 225 0
 Centralised Budgets 0 91 91 0
 HRA Business Managers/Assistant Directors 0 (2) (2) 0
TOTAL EXPENDITURE 16,183 16,346 16,626 280
    
NET COST OF HRA SERVICES (9,256) (9,093) (8,683) 410
    
Interest Payable and Similar Charges 2,816 2,816 2,816 0
Interest and Investment Income (228) (228) (228) 0
    
DEFICIT (SURPLUS) FOR THE YEAR ON THE 
HRA (6,668) (6,505) (6,095) 410

    
MOVEMENT ON THE HRA BALANCE    
    
(Deficit)/Surplus for the Year 6,668 6,505 6,095 (410)
Transfer to Major Repairs Reserve (Depreciation 
less MRA) (3,101) (3,101) (3,101) 0

Repayment Of Principal (3,222) (3,222) (3,222) 0
Other Reserve Movements 225 225 225 0
Variance - reduction in transfer to reserve 570 407 (3) (410)

     

25



Appendix D
HRA Revenue Variance Analysis (over £15k)

VARIANCE ANALYSIS

Forecast 
Variance 
£000

  
Dwelling Rents - The under recovery is due to estimated write-offs of £120k 
for the year and a higher than expected void rate (currently 0.3% over 
budget)

150

Repairs & Maintenance - The over spend is due to increased materials costs 
on reactive repairs and the removal of the budgeted workforce efficiency 
(£94k)

188

Supervision & Management General - Legal fees have increased by £15k 
due to repossession cases. Removal of budgeted efficiency savings has 
increased the forecast by £50k

84

Charges For Services & Facilities - As more general needs dwellings are 
being used for homelessness, additional service charges income is being 
generated

(20)

Total 402
Sum of Minor Variances 8
Total Adverse Variances 410
  

26



Appendix E
General Fund Capital Programme Variance Analysis

GF CAPITAL PROGRAMME MONITORING - SEPTEMBER 2018
2018/19

Scheme Description
Original 
Budget 

£000

Adjusted 
Budget 

£000

Forecast 
Outturn 

£000

Forecast 
Variance 

£000

Variance Explanations

Purchase of South Kesteven trailer 55 55 55 0  
Shop Front Scheme 130 130 130 0  
St Peter's Hill Development 5,500 5,400 5,400 0  
Property Investment Strategy 3,900 3,900 3,900 0  
Local Authority Controlled Company 2,550 2,800 1,400 (1,400) 12 month build programme, starting in October

Public Realm 0 1,661 1,661 0

The final design of the scheme is currently being finalised 
along with consideration of a number of risk factors which 
could impact on the budget.

Disabled Facilities Grant 797 797 320 (477)
Demand is dependent on referrals from LCC Occupational 
Therapists

Empty Homes Financial Assistance 50 50 0 (50) No applications received.
Essential Home Grant Assistance 75 75 2 (73) Cases under this budget now fall under DFG
Car Park Ticket Machines 150 150 120 (30) Machines all ordered, costs were less than expected.
Car Park Barriers 50 50 0 (50) Still in development awaiting decision to be made.
Deepings Leisure Centre - Boilers 70 70 70 0  
Meres Leisure Centre - PA System 35 35 35 0  

Market Stall Covers 50 50 21 (29)
Grantham covers ordered, other orders likely to slip into 
following year.

Tourism Signage 50 50 50 0  
Wyndham Park Lighting 25 25 27 2  
Grantham Arts Centre - Theatre Lighting 35 35 37 2  
Wyndham Park Improvements 357 393 400 7 Overspend due to delays and asbestos work.

27



GF CAPITAL PROGRAMME MONITORING - SEPTEMBER 2018

Variance Explanations
2018/19

Scheme Description
Original 
Budget 

£000

Adjusted 
Budget 

£000

Forecast 
Outturn 

£000

Forecast 
Variance 

£000

Wheelie Bin Replacements 175 175 175 0  
Pool Vehicles 247 247 247 0  
Street Scene Vehicle Procurement 311 511 511 0  
Vehicle Electric Charging Points 0 39 39 0  
Vehicle Replacement Programme 102 163 163 0  
Financial System Upgrade 50 50 80 30 Additional support required and increased licensing costs.
Equillogic Server Based Storage 20 20 20 0  
Uninterruptible Power Supply 
Replacement 15 15 15 0  
EnvironmentSk Vehicle purchase 0 450 450 0

ICT Infrastructure - Sandbox Firewall 40 82 17 (65)
Review of cyber risks being undertaken, expenditure likely to 
slip into following year pending results of the review.

TOTAL 14,839 17,478 15,345 (2,133)  

28



Appendix F
HRA Capital Programme Variance Analysis

HRA CAPITAL PROGRAMME MONITORING - SEPTEMBER 2018
2018/19

Scheme Description
Original 
Budget 

£000

Adjusted 
Budget 

£000

Forecast 
Outturn 

£000

Forecast 
Variance 

£000

Variance Explanation

Heating And Ventilation 1,350 1,350 1,350 0  

Repairs Vehicles 324 324 324 0  

Kitchens & Bathrooms Programmes 1,000 1,000 1,000 0  

Re-Roofing 1,100 1,100 1,100 0  

Electrical Rewires 250 250 250 0  

Replacement Door Programme 80 80 80 0  

External Wall Insulation 0 0 1 1  

New Build Properties 790 790 790 0  

Property Development 5,000 5,000 2,775 (2,225) Spend dependent on opportunities arising

Communal Rooms 70 70 70 0  

Sewage Refurbishment 40 40 40 0  

TOTAL 10,004 10,004 7,780 2,224  

29



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Action notes of the meeting held on 17 October 2018
	7 Quarter 2 Financial Management Report 2018/19

